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Financial Highlights

2007 2006

Net asset value capital return* +7.8% +337%
Dwidend per share +19.7% +15.3%
Share price -1.4% +44.6%
* With debt at market value

Net Asset Value per share with

debt at market value Dividends per share Share price

At 31 Cctober 2007 - pence pence At 371 October 2007 - pence

The figures in the years 2003 to 2006 in the charts above have been restated to reflect the sub dwision of the ordinary 25p
shares Iinto five ordinary 5p shares in November 2006

Financial Calendar

14 December 2007 Announcement of results for year ended 31 October 2007

7 February 2008 Annual General Meeting

11 February 2008 Final ordinary dividend payable for year ended 31 October 2007
June 2008 Announcement of interim results for six months ending 30 Apnit 2008
July 2008 Interrm ordinary dividend payable for year ending 31 October 2008
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Corporate Summary

The Company

The Company 1s an investment trust and its shares are listed
on the London Stock Exchange The Company aims to attract
long term private and institutional investors wanting to
benefit from the growth prospects of smaller companies by
investment 1n a relatively risk averse mnvestment trust

Manager
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited (*AAM”)

Investment Gbjective

The achievernent of long term growth fram a portfolio of
smaller companies in the United Kingdom

Benchmark
FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding Investment Companies)

Investment Policy and Approach

The Company maintains a diversified partfolio of
nvestments, typrcally compnising in the region of 60 to 90
holdings {but without restricting the Company from holding
a mare or less concentrated portfolio from time to time) The
Company 1s unconstramed as to the market sectors in which
It may invest

The Cornpany invests primanly in the equity secunities of UK
smalter companies with an emphasis on investing in quality
compariles with good management, strong cash flow, a
sound balance sheet and the prospect of dividend growth

The Company does not typically acquire secunities that are
unquoted or unlisted at the nme of nvestment (with the
exception of securities which are about to be listed or traded
on a stock exchange) However, the Company may continue
to hold secunities that cease to be quoted or listed if the
Manager constders this to be appropriate

As a result of the publication of the Investment Entities
(Listing Rules and Conduct of Business) Instrument 2003 the
Board stated that it 1s the Company’s policy to nvest no
more than 15% of its gross assets in other listed investment
companies {including bisted mvestment trusts)

The Company complies with section 842 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and does not invest more than
15% of its assets in the shares of any one company

Investment Process
The Manager believes that, over the long term, share prices
reflect underlying business fundamentats A bottom up

pracess is followed which 1s based on a disciplined evaluation
of companies through direct visits
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Company selection is the major source of added value New
investments are not made without the Manager having first
met management of the investee company, undertaken
further analysis and written detailed notes to outline the
underlying investment merits A company's value 1s
estimated in two stages, quality then price Quality 1s defined
with reference to management, business focus, balance sheet
and corporate governance Price 1s calculated relative to key
financral ratios and business prospects The Manager believes
that nsk should be considered in the context of investing in
poor quality compantes and/or overpaying, rather than
relative to a benchmark, hence, great emphasis 1s placed an
understanding the business and understanding how it should
be valued

Top down factors are secondary in the Manager’s portfolo
construction, with diversification rather than formal controls
guiding stock and sector weightings The Manager's
portfolios are generally run conservatively, with an emphagis
on traditional buy and hold, top sbcing/topping up being
preferred to outright trading and this approach results m low
turnover within portfolios Typically, investee campanies
have a hugher return on equity/assets and lower debt to
equity than the market averages.

Portfolics are managed by the Manager on a team basis, with
mndwvidual investment managers carrying out their own
research and anatysis Each investment desk has a model
portfolio that contamns its best ideas, and forms the basis for
portfolios, both retal and institutional Al ideas are shared
via formal committees and common databases, with desk
heads and the Chuef Investment Cfficer ensuring there 1s
consistency across portfolios The investment process and
risk controls employed by the Manager are further disclosed
on page 15

Capial Structure

As at 31 October 2007, the Company has a capital structure
comprising ordinary shares of 5p and subscrniption shares of
0001p The Company has a £15 million 3 year revolving
credit facility {£10 million drawn down as at 14 December
2007} The £15 mullion 8 375% Debenture Stock was repaid
on 1 December 2006

Gearing

The Board 15 responsible for deterrmining the gearning policy of
the Company The current guidelines from the Board
authorise the Manager to invest up to £10 mithon of
borrowings without reference to the Board

Total Assets and Net Asset Value

The Company had total assets of £92 4 million and a net
asset value of 166 97p per ordinary share at 31 October
2007



Market Capitalisation

The Company had a market capitalisation of £70 3 million at
31 October 2007

Websites

www dunedinsmaller co uk
www aberdeen asset com

Company Secretary

Aperdeen Asset Management PLC, Donaldson House, 97
Haymarket Terrace, Edinburgh EM12 5HD
Email company secretary@nvtrusts co uk

Customer Services
Email inv trusts@aberdeen asset com

Risk

Managing a portfolio of shares in sraller compamies
necessarily involves certain nisks, the more important of
which are set out on pages 18 and 38 of this Report

The Company has the ability to utilise geaning in the form of
a 3 year revolving credit facility Gearing has the effect of
accentuating market falls and market gamns

Duration
The Company does not have a fixed life

Share Dealing/PEP/ISA Status

Shares in Dunedin Smaller Companies investment Trust PLC
can be bought in the open market through a stockbroker
Shares can alse be purchased through the investment Trust
Share Plan and the Investment Trust ISA and PEP and are
fully qualifying for inclusion within tax efficient I1SA wrappers
{see page 41)

Management and Secretariat Agreements

The Company has an agreement with AAM for the provision
of management services, details of which are shown in note
3 to the financial statements The basic management fee 1s
0 4% per annum of adjusted gross assets There ts also a
performance related management fee calculated at a rate of
0 1% per annum (up to a maximum of 0 5% per annum) of
the adjusted gross assets for every 10% by which the
Company's net asset value performance outperforms the
capital performance of the benchmark index over the
previous 12 month penod (a performance fee of £200,000
was earned in respect of the year ended 31 October 2007}
The agreement i1s normally termenable by either party on
three months' notice

The Company has an agreement with AAM for the provision
of adimunistrative and secretanial services, details of which are
shown in note 4 to the financial statements

The terms and condittons of the Manager's appointment,
including an evaluation of performance and fees, are
reviewed by the Management Engagerment Committee on an
annual basis The Commuittee belreves that the continuing
appomtment of the Manager, on the terms agreed, 15 In the
interests of shareholders as a whole Further details are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement

AlC

The Company s a member of the Association of Investment
Companies

Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC 3



Chairman’s Statement

The Earl of Dathousie
Chairman
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The smaller company sector started the year strongly but, as
markets became more volatile during the summer months,
gave back much of the earlier gains and over the year lagged
behind the broader equity markets The Company’s net asset
value per share (with borrowings at market value) rose by

7 B% compared to increases of 2 2% in the FTSE SmallCap
Index (excluding Investment Companies) and 9 7% i the
FTSE 100 Index The Company's share price fell by 14% to
142 50p The subscription shares which are listed on the
London Stock Exchange had a closing price of 19 50p per
share at 31 October 2007

Revenue return per share for the year increased from 3 84p
to 4 47p and the Board 15 pleased to announce that it 15
recommending a final dividend of 2 50p which will be paid
on 11 February 2008 to shareholders on the register on 18
January 2008 When combined with the interim diwidend of
175p, the total dividend for the year will amount to 4 25p,
an increase of 197%

During the year, the Cornpany repurchased i the market
7,642,556 ordinary shares, at discounts of between 8% and
17%, at a total cost of £11 9 milion The Directors intend to
continue to utilise the Company’s share buyback powers to
enhance NAV for continuing shareholders

As outlined in last year's annual report and the circutar to
shareholders, the Company imptemented a number of
changes, following shareholder approval, which were aimed
at building on the Company's existing qualittes and to
enhance its appeal to its target nvestor base, as well as
providing shareholders with the opportumity to realise at
least part of therr nvestment The specific actions that have
been implernented since 31 October 2006 are shown in note
13 to the annual report

Following the implementatton of these changes, the
Company's objective of delivering long term growth from a
portfolio of small companees in the UK remains unchanged
and the performance benchmark continues to be the FTSE
SmaliCap Index (excluding Investment Companies} The
Directors however have reinforced the Company's
differentiating factors from its peer group by placing more
emphasis on total returns to shareholders The yield on the
Company's portfolio has been increased by selling some of
its mil and low yielding stocks although the overall portfolio
continues to focus on compamies with strong balance sheets,
positive cash flows and the potential to grow dividends to
shareholders

This strategy 1s intended to enable the Company to increase
income from its iInvestments and to grow the dividends paid
on the ordinary shares over time but without creating a
negative Impact upon the Company's ability to deliver
capital growth The Company 15 one of the highest yielding
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companies in 1ts peer group and the Directors believe that
increasing the dividend income will further differentiate the
Company and attract a broader range of long term private
and institutional investors who want to benefit from the
growth prospects of smaller compainies by investing in a
relatively risk averse nvestment trust with the additional
benefit of an above average dividend yield

Qur investment portfolio has continued to deliver good
returns over the year and out performed the benchmark by
over 5% The combination of this out performance and the
uplift to NAV from buying back the Company’s shares has
enabled the Company to more than coffset the costs that
were incurred to repay the Debenture Stock and implerment
the changes referred to above

Since the year end, equity markets have fallen, with the share
prices of the smaller company sector in the UK being
particularly affected The FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding
Investment Companies) has fallen by 16 3% and the
Company's NAV has fallen by 15 0% in the period from 31
October 2007 to 12 December 2007

VAT on Management Fees

in 2004, the Association of Investment Companies {AIC) and
JPM Claverhouse Investment Trust ple launched a case
against HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) in which they
ctaimed that management fees charged to UK investment
trusts should be exempt from VAT On 28 june 2007, the
European Court of Justice found in favour of the
AIC/Claverhouse case In respect of the specific questions
referred to it by the UK VAT Tribunal HMRC accepted this
judgement in November Your Company has taken
appropniate steps to reclaim the relevant VAT that has been
paid on management fees but we have not recognised any
asset In the financial statements as the amounts are not yet
quantifiable

Corporate Governance

The Board reviews annually the performance of the Manager,
the Charrman and the Board as a whole The Board has
assessed the performance of the Manager, the investment
process and risk controls The portfolio is delivering capital
appreciation, has out performed the benchmark and
produced higher dividend income to shareholders The
Directors have reviewed the terms of the management
agreement and believe that the continuing appomntment of
the Manager 15 in the interests of shareholders The
management agreement, however, has been transferred
under a novation agreement from Edinburgh Fund Managers
ple, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC, 1o Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited, also
a wholly owned subsidiary of Aberdeen Asset Management

PLC The.e have been no changes to the terms of the
agreement following the transfer

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting this year will be held at The
Balmoral Hotel, 1 Princes Street, Edinburgh on 7 February
2008 at 12 00 noon In addition to the formal business of the
meeting, our portfolio manager, Ed Beal, will provide an
update on the outlock for smaller companies and there will
also be an opportunity for shareholders to meet informally
with the Directors at the conclusion of the AGM

The Earl of Dalhouste

Chairman
14 December 2007
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Manager’s Review

The smaller company sector expenenced more difficult
conditions than those witnessed m recent years although the
Company has delivered absolute gains and has out
performed the index The net asset value per share {with
debt at market value} increased by 7 8% over the year
compared to a rice n the benchmark of 22% The main
reason for the out performance was stock selection

Market Background

The year started strongty following the trend of the previous
three years Interest rates had been increased in November
2006 but the market had taken this in its strnide  The first six
months of the year saw the performance of smaller
companies continue in the same vein as in recent years
Merger and acquisition activity continued apace, albeit
moving further up the market capitalisation scale This was
accompanied by asset atlocation decisions by institutional
Investors to reduce their exposure to smaller companies in
favour of targer comparies

in January, the market was surpnsed by an increase mn
interest rates, the first move outwith the Bank of England’s
monthly Inflation Report in over two years This was
followed by further weakness during February triggered by
increasing concerns about the US sub prime lending markets
and the sustamnability of the Yen carry trade The March
reporting season was generally positive, though it became
increasingly apparent that expectations for growth in
corporate profitability were being remed in  Equity markets
however recovered and continued to rise for the next three
months

May witnessed a further increase in base rates as the
Monetary Policy Committee focussed on the risks of hugher
inflation following the surprise news that the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) had breached three per cent in March This
resulted in the Governor of the Bank of England having to
writing an explanatory letter to the Chancellor of the
Exchequer The benchmark reached an all time high in early
June

The subsequent period was charactenised by a sudden and
marked reduction in investor appetite for nsk. This was
dniven by the developing crisis in the US collateralised debt
abligation {CDO) and sub prime mortgage markets Liquidity
evaporated, equity markets fell and merger and acquisition
activity came to an almost comptete halt Interest rates
were increased by a further 25 basts points in July The US
Federal Reserve and European Central Bank both took steps
to inject kquidity into the markets and this served to calm
nerves though credit markets rernained very tight The oil
price continued its inexorable rise and the US doltar fell to
levels not seen for decades There was an increase in the
number of profit warnings amongst smaller companies and,
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increasingly, US dollar weakness was highlighted as a
negative factor for corporate profitability

Nevertheless, the September reporting season was
surpnsingly positive and the good profits were accompanied
by strong growth in dividends, particularly amongst mid cap
companies, and also a marked shift upwards in the ratio of
directors’ purchases of their compantes’ shares compared to
their sales

Portfolio

The partfolio 1s constructed to deliver both capital and
tncome growth and we remain focussed on 1dentifying good
quality companies run by strong management teams,
particularly where an above average dividend yield is
avaiiable As a general rule, we do not invest in loss making
businesses which may be high nisk and carry a material
chance of fallure This strategy has again been beneficial to
performance over the last year

The Company entered the year in a net cash position as we
prepared for the tender offer and repayment of the
debenture We employed a modest amount of gearing over
the course of the year, utilising the factity where we saw
opportumities  As markets becarmne more difficult in the {atter
part of the year, cash that flowed into the Company as a
result of takeover activity was used mainly to finance the
purchase of the Comnpany’s own shares rather than being re
invested in equities At the year end the Company was i an
un geared position

Over the year, the Company benefited from strong
perfarmances from a number of 1ts holdings  Dobbies
Garden Centres, (General Retait) was acquired by Tesco
Aveva Group, {Software and Cornpute Services) continued to
be a positive contributor to performance  the shares almost
doubled over the year as the company benefited from
unprecedented demand from its pnmary markets of ship
building, oil and gas and power generation The company 15
now a global ieader in the field of design software for major
international companies. Laird Group, (Electronic and
Electrical) was re rated foliowing the disposal of their
securnity operations and subsequent return of capital to
shareholders The strength in their end markets and a series
of well received acquisitions have also benefited the share
price Expro International {Oil and Gas Services) benefited
from their ability to capitalise on strong international
markets and successfully integrated a significant acquisitton
Chloride Group {Electronic and Etectrical) has produced good
growth in both profitability and dividends from the increased
demand for urunterruptible power supplies These markets
are growing ahead of global GDP as demand for power
mcreases and power quality deteriorates



Although there were fewer acquisitions by number this year
than in recent times, the Company again benefited from
take over bids for a number of its holdings including
European Motor Holdings, La Tasca and Quantica

Qutlook

Global equity markets are currently very volatide The
reasons for this are the cnisis in the US sub prime mortgage
market which 15 in turn causing turmoil in the credit markets
tnvestors are also concerned about the outlook for the US
economy where the deterioration in the housing market 1s
likely to impact consumer confidence

Inflationary pressures caused by high ail and commodity
prices have led to the Monetary Policy Commuttee to
increase UK interest rates and there are now signs of nisimg
unemptoyment The outlook for interest rates n the UK
remans uncertamn though the market s currently expecting a
cut 1n the early part of 2008 Merger and acquisition activity
15 no longer a positive factor for equity markets as both trade
and private equity purchasers are struggling to secure
liquidity

Since the year end, the share prices of the smaller companies
sector in the UK have fallen Consequently, in the period
from 31 October 2007 to 12 December 2007, the FTSE
SmallCap Index (excluding Investment Companies) and the
Company's NAV have fallen by 16 3% and 15 0%
respectively

Ed Beal
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited
14 December 2007
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Results

Financtal Highlights
31 October 2007 31 October 2006* % change
Total assets less current Labilities {before deducting priar charges) £92,364,000° £146,253,000
Equnty sharehotders’ funds (Net Assets) £82,364,000° £131,397,000
Share pnice (mid market) 142 50p 144 50p (14)
Net Asset Value per share 166 97p 16131p 35
Net Asset Value per share adjusted for borrowings valued at market value 166 97p 154 90p 78
FTSE SmaliCap Index (ex IC's) {capital gains basis) 361099 3,53395 22
Discount [difference between share price and net asset value)
where borrowings are deducted at par 147% 104%
where borrowings are deducted at market value 14 7% 67%
Gearing (ratio of borrowing to shareholders’ funds)
Actuat gearing ratio 069% {12 46%}
Potential geaning ratio 12 14% 1143%
Dividends and earmings
Totat retum per share® 437p 41 08p
Revenue retyrn per share 447p 384p 164
Drvaidends per share® 425p 355p 197
Dwadend cover {including proposed final dividend) 105 108
Revenue reservest £4,412,000 £4,611,000
Operating costs
Total expense ratio 120% 149%

* On 30 November 2006 each of the ordinary 25p shares were sub divided into five ordinary shares of 5p  Therefore, the per share figures for the year ended 31 October

2006 abave differ to those reported in the last Annual Report by a factor of five
* The Tender Offer in November 2006 has had an impact on the assets of the Company

© Measures the total earnings for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary sha es in 1ssue (see income Statement)

® The figures for dvidends per share reflect the years in which they were earned {see note 7 on page 34)

* The revenue reserve figure does not take account of the proposed final dividend amounting to £1,220,000 (2006  second intenm of £87 1,000, final of £875,000}

Performance
1year 3 year 5 year

% retum % return % return
Capital retum
Share price {14) 768 1699
Net Asset Value per share 35 599 1380
FTSE SmallCap index {ex 1C's) 22 391 1031
Total return (Capital retumn plus dividends reinvested)
Share price 15 929 2203
Net Asset Value per share 62 721 1725
FTSE SmallCap Index (ex IC's) 46 490 1296

Dividends

Drvidends Rate per share xd date Record date Payment date
Proposed final dividend 2007 250p 16 january 2008 18 January 2008 11 February 2008
Intenim dwidend 2007 175p 27 June 2007 29 June 2007 6 July 2007
2007 4.25p
Final dwidend 2006 155%p 17 January 2007 19 January 2007 12 February 2007
Second intenm dividend 2006* 107p 8 November 2006 10 November 2006 23 November 2006
First interim dividend 2006 093p 21 june 2006 23 June 2006 30 June 2006
2006 3 55p

*Adjusted by a factor of five followng share sub-division in November 2006
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Performance

Share Price Discount to NAV (%)
Five years to 31 October 2007

Capital Return of NAV and Share Price vs FTSE SmallCap Index (ex Investment Companies)

Five years to 31 October 2007

Ten Year Financial Record

Year to 31 October 1988 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Revenue available for ordinary 2,463 2576 2510 2,243 1,647 2002 2,403 2,795 3128 2432*
dividends (£'000)

Per share

Net revenue retum (p} 29 31 30 27 20 24 29 34 38 45
Net dividends paid/proposed (p} z4 25 26 26 26 26 28 31 36 43
Net asset value (p) 713 1015 1348 959 689 901 1026 1233 1613 1670
Total return (p) (98) 327 356 (237) (244 238 148 218 411 44
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 60,136 85509 112,708 80,321 57,224 74,752 83627 100515 131397 82364

* The Tender Offer in Navember 2006 has had an impact on the revenue achrevable

The per share values for the years 1998 1o 2006 have been adjusted by a factor of five to reflect the sub dwsion of the ordinary 25p shares into 5 ordinary Sp shares in

November 2006

The figures for 2005 for net asset value and shareholders” funds have been restated to reflect the changes in accounting palicres (FRS 26 Financial Instruments.
Recogmtion and Measurement, FRS 21 Events after the Balance Sheet Date} The figures for dividends have not been restated and still refiect the didends for the years

in which they were earned
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Investment Portfolio — Ten Largest Investments

As at 31 October 2007

Company

Sector

Market
valuation
2007
£'000

Total
assets
%

Market
valuation
2006
£'000

Morgan Sindall

Morgan Sindall 1s a bullding contractor As well as infrastructure
projects the business has developed an expertise In the fit out
and social housing markets

Construction
& Matenals

2,430

26

3,236

Fenner

fenner 1s a manufacturer of heavy duty belts used in industries
such as coal mining Demand from the mining markets has
been strong The company also produces advanced polymer
praducts which are sold onto a broad range of demanding end
markets

Industrial
Engineenng

2,261

24

2,693

Menzies {John}

John Menzies 1s a logistic support services group  As well as the
distrbution of newspapers, magazines and penodicals, Menzies'
international aviation group provides ground handling services
to the air cargo industry

Support
Services

2,190

24

1,691

Laird

Larrd produces a range of high performance antennae, and
electromagnetic and thermal shielding products Demand for
such products 1s increasing as the complexity of electrical
devices Increases

Electronic &
Electrical
Equipment

2178

24

1,503

BPP

BPP publishes educational matenals and books They also
provide professional traiming courses in finance, accountancy,
taxation, law and various foreign languages and have become
the UK's first for profit orgamisation to be granted degree
awarding powers

Support
Services

2,147

23

1,811

Chlonde

Chloride supplies urinterruptible power unrts to various end
markets including government, telecoms and general
manufacturing The long term growth driver remains the
deterioration in the quality of power supply The proportion of
service revenues within the mix 1s tncreasing which is helping
margins

Electroruc &
Electrical
Equipment

2,145

23

2,306

Chemring Group

Chemrning speciabses in the manufacture of countermeasure
and location devices Main customers are the UK MoD and US
Department of Defence Terronst activity and the Iraq war have
highlighted growth opportumties far the group in the
protection of military assets from missile attack.

Aerospace &
Defence

2,129

23

2,216

Holidaybreak

Holidaybreak 15 the market leader in the provision of UK and
European shart stay hotel breaks They are also the UK market
leader in the schools outdoor market Additionally, they have
an adventure holidays and camping business

Travel &
Leisure

1,805

20

1,652

Ultra Electronics

Ultra Electromics 15 a manufacturer of electronic products for
the defence industry The main products are for submarine
detection, missile launch systems and battlespace technology

Aerospace &
Defence

1,750

2,093

British Polythene Industries

British Polythene Industries is the largest manufacturer of
polythene films, sacks and bags in Europe Key products include
shrinkwrap, stretchwrap and silagewrap End markets include
food, agriculture, industrial and construction

General
industrials

1,732

19

2,250

Ten largest investments

20,807

225
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Investment Portfolio — Other Investments

As at 31 October 2007

Market Market
valuation Total  valuation
2007 assets 2006
Company Sector classification £'000 % £'000
BSS Group Support Services 1,598 17 2,220
Savills Real Estate 1,597 17 2,474
Dechra Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology 1,590 17 1,642
Wilmington Group Media 1,572 17 1,851
The Restaurant Group Travei & Leisure 1,538 17 2,401
Expro International Osl Equipment & Services 1,529 17 1,750
White Young Green Support Services 1,506 16 1,958
Low & Bonar Construction & Matenals 1,496 16 1,576
Verniture Production Ol & Gas Producers 1,482 16 1,811
Numis Corporation General Financial 1,479 16 1,445
Twenty largest investments 36,194 391
SIG Support Services 1,473 16 2,146
Unite Group Real Estate 1,407 15 1,407
Victrex Chemicals 1,374 15 2,326
Robert Walters Support Services 1,346 15 1,879
Weir Group Industrial Engineenng 1,331 14 1,78%
Mouchel Parkman Support Services 1,293 14 1,351
Ennstone Construction & Materials 1,288 14 1,488
TT Electronics Electrome & Electrical Equipment 1,261 14 2,380
Bloomsbury Publishing Media 1,254 14 504
Intermediate Capital Group General Financial 1,242 13 1,904
Thirty largest investments 49,463 535
RPC Group General Industrials 1,228 13 1,298
Mothercare General Retatlers 1,221 13 1,067
CODA Software & Computer Services 1,215 13 1,458
McBnide Household Goods 1,209 13 1,561
Headlam Group Household Goods 1,202 13 1,633
Interserve Support Services 1,162 13 838
Huntsworth Media 1,162 13 1,310
Fuller Smuth & Turner ‘A’ Travel & Lessure 1,135 12 1,358
Aveva Software & Computer Services 1,096 12 1,908
RM Software & Computer Services 1,093 12 1,212
Forty largest investments 61,186 662
TDG Industrial Transportation 1,093 12 1,433
Hornby Leisure Goods 1,090 12 1,020
Acal Support Services 1,089 12 1,937
Anite Group Software & Computer Services 1,067 12 1,103
Rensburg Sheppards General Financial 1,055 11 1,847
Zotefoams Chemicals 1,031 11 1,119
Management Consulting Group Support Services 1,027 11 969
XP Power Electronic & Electncal Equipment 1,01 11 1,436
Brammer Support Senices 998 11 670
Clarke (T) Construction & Matertals 989 11 1,597
Fifty largest investments 71,636 776
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Investment Portfolio — Other Investments

coniinued

Market Market
valuation Total  valuation
2007 assets 2006
Company Sector classification £000 % £000
Forth Ports industrial Transportation 959 10 1,376
Detica Group Software & Computer Services 892 10 870
Care UK Health Care Equipment & Services 890 10 1,295
UTV Media Meda 780 08 787
Bellway Household Goods 771 o8 1,497
Havelock Europa Household Goods 755 08 713
Umeco Aerospace & Defence 745 08 559
Avon Rubber General Industrials 731 o8 1,071
Greggs Food & Drug Retailers 689 07 571
Johnson Service Group Support Services 626 o7 -
Sixty largest investments 79,474 860
Topps Tiles Genweral Retailers 608 07 556
Salvesen (Christran} industrial Transportation 589 06 877
Oxford Instruments Electronic & Electrical Equipment 531 06 471
Spectns Group Electronic & Electnical Equipment 495 Qs 660
Pendragoen General Retailers 456 05 7
Barr {AG) Beverages 434 05 -
Alphameric Software & Computer Services 246 03 822
Erinaceous Support Services 98 01 -
Total value of investments 82,931 898
Net current assets before borrowings 9,433 102
Total assets” 92,364 100.0

* See definition an page 43
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Sector Analysis
As at 31 October 2007

FTSE SmallCap Portfolio weightings
Index (ex IC's) 31 October 31 October
Weighting 2007 2006
% % %
Bastc Matenials Chemicals 213 260 236
Mining G 47 - -
260 260 236
Consumer Goods Automobiles & Parts 008 - -
Beverages 043 047 -
Food Producers 278 - 043
Household Goods 074 426 369
Leisure Goods 142 118 070
Personal Goods 066 - -
611 591 482
Consumer Services Food & Drug Retailers 031 076 039
General Retailers 762 247 481
Media 491 516 37
Travel & Leisure 288 485 428
1572 1324 1319
Financials Equity Investment Instruments - - 069
General Financial 525 409 355
Life Insurance 044 - -
Non Life Insurance/Assurance 271 - 045
Real Estate 1015 325 670
18 55 734 1139
Health Care Health Care Equipment & Services 313 097 088
Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology 595 172 112
908 269 2.00
industnals Aerospace & Defence 115 505 333
Construction & Matenals 289 671 540
Electronic & Electrical Equipment 439 825 5499
General Industrials 087 400 316
Industrial Engineering 614 389 306
Industrial Transportation 324 286 252
Support Services 1258 1792 1335
3126 48 68 36.81
Ol & Gas Oul & Gas Producers 323 180 124
Oil Equipment & Services - 166 120
323 3.26 244
Technology Software & Computer Services 890 607 555
Technology Hardware & Equipment 274 - -
1164 607 555
Telecommunications  Fixed Line Telecommunications 181 - -
181 - -
Total equities 100.00 8979 78 56
Net current assets before borrowings® - 1021 2144
Total assets less current Liabilities 100.00 100 00 100 00

* Excludes bank loan of £10 000 000
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Information about the Manager

The Company’s manager 15 Aberdeen Asset Managers
Limited ("AAM"), a wholly owned substdrary of Aberdeen
Asset Management PLC (“Aberdeen”}, whose Group
companies as at 31 October 2007 managed a combined
£100 9 bullion of funds for UK institutions, investment trusts,
closed end funds, unit trusts, private clients and offshore

It has its headquarters in Aberdeen with principal investment
offices in Bangkok, Edinburgh, Hong Kong, London,
Philadelphia, Singapere and Sydney

The Group manages over 30 nvestment trusts and other
closed end funds representing £6 4 bitlion under

funds

management

The investment Team Semor Managers

£d Beal

investment Manager

Ed 15 an ipvestment rmanager on the
Pan European equities team Ed
manages the Company Ed joined
Aberdeen* in 2000 from the
University of Dundee's Student
Association where he was president
leading development and strategy

Ed graduated with a BSc (Hons) in
Biochemistry from the University of
Dundee and 1s a CFA Charterholder
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Stewart Methven

Senior Investment Manager
Stewart 15 a semior investrment
manager on the Pan European
equity team Stewart joined
Aberdeen* in 1994 from Scottish
Provident where he was responsible
for smaller company mvestment
Previously, Stewart worked for
Prudentiat Portfolio Managers as an
Investment analyst

Stewart graduated with a first class
BA {Hons) in Economics from
Henot Watt University, Edinburgh
and 15 a member of the Association
for Investment Management and
Research

*or acquired companies



The Investment Process

Philosaphy and Style

The Manager’s investment philosophy 1s that markets are not
always efficient We believe that supenor investment returns
are therefore attainable by identifymg good companies
cheaply, defined in terms of the fundamentals that in our
opinion drive share prices over the long term We undertake
substantial due diligence before initiating any investment
including company visits in order to assure ourselves of the
quality of the prospective investment We are then careful
not to pay too high a price when making the investment
Subsequent to that investment we then keep in close touch
with the company, aiming to meet management at least
twice a year Given our long term fundamental investment
philosophy, one would not expect much change in the
companies in which we invest We do, however, take
opportunities offered to us by what we see as anomalous
price mavements within stock markets to either tap up or
top slice positions, which accounts for the bulk of the actmity
within the portfolio during the year under review

Risk Controls

We seek to minimise risk by our in depth research We do
not view divergence from a benchmark as risk — we view
investment in poorly run expensive companies that we do
not understand as nisk In fact where rnisk parameters are
expressed in benchmark relative terms, asset — including
sector - allocation constitutes a significant constraint on
stock selection Hence diversification of stocks provides our
main control

Aberdeen's performance and investment risk umit
independently monitors portfolio positions, and reports
monthly As well as attributing performance 1t also produces
statistical analysis, which 1s used by the Manager primarily Lo
check the portfolio s behaving as expected, not as a
predictive tool

Regional Teams
Company visit note Risk controls
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
Quality Aberdeen Price Portfolio

> universe

Pass or fail?

NS N

> construction

Cheap or expensive?

A NS

Potential revisit >

Monitor

Watchlist/Review >
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Your Board of Directors

The Directors, all of whom are non executive, and the majonity of whom are independent of the Manager, supervise the
management of Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC and represent the interests of shareholders

The Earl of Dalhousie

Status Independent Non Executive
Chairman

Age 59

Length of service 14 years, appomted
a Director on 1 November 1393
Experience formerly a director of
Hambros Bank Ltd, Enskilda Secunties
and Capel Cure Myers Capital
Management

Last re elected to the Board 9
February 2006

Committee membership Audit
Committee and Management
Engagement Committee
Remuneration £18,203

All other public company
directorships None

Employment by the Manager None
Other connectsons with Trust or
Manager- None

Shared Directorships with any other
Trust Directors None

Shareholding in Company 20,000 5p
ordinary shares and 3,000 subscniption
shares
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T J K Barnes

Status Independent Non £xecutive
Drrector

Age 46

Length of service 4 years, sppointed a
Director on 1 December 2003
Expertence s ctuef executive of
Dobbies Garden Centres and a former
investrent banker

Last re elected to the Board 8
February 2007

Committee membership- Audit
Committee and Management
Engagement Commuttee
Remuneration £13,891

All other public company
directorships Dobbres Garden Centres
PLC

Employment by the Manager None
Other connections with Trust or
Manager None

Shared Directerships with any other
Trust Directors None

Shareholding in Company. 12,825 5p
orcinary shares and 1,923 subscripticn
shares

R M Entwistle

Status Independent Non Executive
Director and Senior Independent
Director

Age* 63

Length of service. 9 years, appointed a
Dwector on 18 December 1998
Experience is chairman of Adam &
Company and a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers

Last re elected to the Board 10
February 2005

Committee membership Audit
Commuittee and Management
Engagement Commuttee
Remuneration £13,891

All other public company
directorships Adam & Company
Group PLC

Employment by the Manager None
Other connections with Trust or
Manager- None

Shared Directorships with any other
Trust Directors. None

Shareholding in Company: 30,000 5p
ordinary shares and 4,500 subscription
shares



N M Yarrow

Status Non Executive Director

Age 47

Length of service 9 years, appointed a
Director on 21 May 1998

Experience 15 a director of Northern
Venture Managers which was, between
June 2000 and December 2003, a
subsidiary of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group ple, (a subsidiary of the
Manager} and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland

Last re elected to the Board 8
February 2007

Committee membership Chairman of
the Audit Committee and Managerment
Engagement Committee
Remuneration, £15,558

All other public company
directorships None

Employment by the Manager Former
employee

Other connections with Trust or
Manager None

Shared Directorships with any other
Trust Directors None

Shareholding in Company 20,000 5p
ordinary shares and 3,000 subscription
shares
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Directors’ Report

Business Review

The Board has prepared this Business Review m accordance
with the requirements of Section ¢34ZZB of the Companies
Act 1985 A review of the Company's activities 1s given in
the Corporate Summary on pages 2 and 3, the Charrman's
Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the Manager's Review on
pages 6 and 7 This inctudes a review of the business of the
Company and 1ts principat activities, bikely future
developments of the business, recommended dividend and
details of acquisition of 1ts own shares by the Company The
Board has adopted a matrix of the key nisks that affect its
bustness The major nisks associated with the Company are
detailed in note 18 to the Financial Statements Other nisks
inctude
(1} Performance nsk The performance of the portfolio
relative to the Benchmark (FTSE SmallCap Index {ex
Investment Comparues)) and the underlying stock
weightings in the partfolio against their Index werghtings
are monitored closely by the Board
{i) Discount volatiity The Company’s shares can trade at a
discount to its underlying net asset value The Company
operates a share buyback programme which 1s reviewed
on an ongoing basis
(m) Regulatory risk The Company operates in a complex
regulatory environment and faces a number of
regulatory nsks Breaches of regulations, such as Section
842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, the
UKLA bisting Rules and the Companies Act, could lead to
a number of detnmental outcomes and reputational
damage The Audit Commuttee monitors compliance
with regulations by reviewing internal control reports
from the Manager

At each Board meeting, the Directors consider a number of
performance measures to assess the Company's success in
achieving its objectives Below are the main key
performance indicators (KPis) which have been identified by
the Board for determining the progress of the Company

Year ended 31 October 2007

Net asset value 166 97p
Share price 142 S0p
Drscount 14 7%
FTSE SmaltCap Index 3,61099
Total expense ratio 120%

A record of these measures 15 disclosed on page 8.

The current Directors as outlined in the table opposite were
the onty Directors who served dunng the year

The Company makes no political denations or expenditures

or donations for charitable purposes and, in common with
most investment trusts, has no employees
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Results and Dividends

The Brirectors recommend that a final dvidend of 2 50p
(2007 — 1 55p) 45 paid on 11 February 2008 to shareholders
on the register on 18 January 2008 The ex dividend date 1s
16 January 2008

Principal Activity

The business of the Company Is that of an mvestment trust
and the Directors do not envisage any change mn this activity
in the foreseeable future

Status
The Company 15 registered as a public bmited cormpany

The Company has been approved by the Inland Revenue as
an investment trust for the purposes of Section 842 of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 for the year ended
31 October 2006 The Directors are of the opinion, under
advice, that the Company has conducted its affairs for the
year ended 31 October 2007 so as to be able to continue to
obtain approval as an investment trust under Section 842 of
the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 for that year

The affairs of the Company were conducted in such a way as
to comply with the gualifying equrty rule as defined in the
Personal Equity Plan Regulations The Cornpany has also
conducted rts affairs so as to satisfy the requirements as a
qualifying secunty for Individual Savings Accounts The
Directors intend that the Company will continue to conduct
its affairs in this manner in the future

Directors

Details of the current Directors of the Company are shown
on pages 16 and 17

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr Entwistle

will retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, wall
offer himself for re election at the Annual General Meeting

The Board has reviewed hus skills and expenience and has no
hesitation in recommending to shareholders his re election

at the Annual General Meeting

The Directors at 31 October 2007 and 1 November 2006
had no interest other than those nterests, all of which are
beneficial interests, shown opposite in the share caprtal of
the Company None of the Directors had any non beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company at 31 October
2007 or 1 November 2006



31 October 2007* 1 Nov 2006

OrdSp  Sub shares Ord 25p

The £arl of Dathousie 20,000 3,000 4,000
T j K Barnes 12,825 1,923 2,565
R M Entwistle 30,000 4,500 6,000
N M Yarrow 20,000 3,000 4,000

* post subdivision

The above interests changed on 30 November 2006
following the sub division of ordinary shares of 25p each into
five ordinary shares of 5p each Additionally each shareholder
received 15 subscription sha, es for every 100 ordinary share
of 5p held No contract or arrangement subsisted durng the
period in which any of the Directors was materially
interested Mr Yarrow 1s an executive director of Northern
Venture Managers which was, between June 2000 and
December 2003, a subsidiary of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group ple, (a subsidiary of the Manager) No Director had a
service contract with the Company

Directors' & Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company maintains insurance in respect of Directors’
and Officers’ liabilitres in refation to their acts on behalf of
the Company

Corporate Governance

The Statement of Corporate Governance Is shown on pages
21to 23

Gotng Concern

The Directors believe that the Company has adequate
resources to continue n operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis m prepanng the accounts

Accountability and Audit

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the
auditors in connection with the financial statements appear
on pages 24 and 26

Each Director confirms that, so far as he i1s aware, there 15 no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware, and he has taken all the steps that he ought to
have taken as a Director mn order to make himself aware of
any relevant audit nformation and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information
Additionally there are no important events since the year
end

Auditors

The Company's auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, are willing to
continue in office and resolutions will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting to reappoint them and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration The Directors have
reviewed the level of non audit services provided by the
auditors during the year together with the auditors’
procedures in connection with the proviston of such services
and remain satisfied that KPMG Audit Plc’s objectmty and
independence 1s being safeguarded

Substantial Interests

At 14 December 2007, being the nearest practicable date to
the signing of this Report, the following were registered or
had notifted the Company as being interested in 3% or more
of the Company's ordinary share capital

Number of % of
ordinary ordinary
Name of Shareholder shares held  shares held
Aberdeen Investment Trust
Savings Plans® 10,986,465 225
Aberdeen Asset Managers A 5,267,275 108
Derbyshtre County Council 3,400,000 70
tegal & General Investment 2,486,602 51
Management Ltd*
DC Thomson & Company Ltd 2,030,000 42

“ Non beneficial interest

Creditor Payment Policy

it 1s the policy of the Company to settle all investment
transactions in accardance with the terms and conditions of
the relevant market in which 1t operates All other expenses
are paid on a timely basis In the ordinary course of business
In certain circumstances, settlement terms are agreed prior
to business taking place

Annual General Meeting Special Business

Under resolution 7 1t 1s proposed that, in line with common
practice, the Directors be authorised to allot up to £803,728
of relevant securrties in the Company (equivalent to
16,074,571 ordinary shares of Sp, representing
approximately 33% of the Company's issued share capital)
without further reference to the Company n general meeting
for a period ending at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting 1n 2009 The Directors have no current intention to
utibise this autherity

Under Section 89(1) of the Compantes Act 1985, where it is
proposed to 1ssue equity securities for cash, they must first
be offered to existing shareholders in proportion to therr
holdings In some circumstances it 1s beneficial to allot such
secunties for cash without first offering them in this way
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Directors’ Report continued

The Directors will therefore propose a special resolubion
[resolution 8) at the Annual General Meeting which, 1f
passed, will allow them to allot equity secunities for cash up
to an aggregate nominal value of £121,777 as if Section
89(1) did not apply This authorty will lapse {unless
renewed) at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in
2009 Ordinary shares would not be 1ssued at a price that 1s
less than the prevailing net asset value

The Directors also propose to seek renewed approval at the
forthcorming Annual General Meeting of the Company to
purchase 1ts own ordinary and subscription shares in the
market The maximum aggregate number of ardinary shares
which may be purchased pursuant to the authority shall be
14 99% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company
and the maximum aggregate number of subscription shares
which may be purchased pursuant to the authority shall be
14 99% of the subscription shares in 1ssue as at the date of
the passing of the resolution The mimimum price which may
be paid for an ordinary share and subscription share shall be
Sp and 0001p respectively The maximum price {exclusive
of expenses) which may be paid for the shares shall be the
hugher of a) 5% above the average of the market values of
the ordinary shares or subscription shares (as denived from
the Daily Officiat List of the London Stock Exchange) for the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of purchase, and b} the higher of the price of the last
independent trade and the highest current independent bid
on the main market for the ordinary shares or subscription
shares {as appropnate)

The authority to buy back ordinary shares, if conferred, will
only be exercised if to do so would result in an increase n
net asset value per ordinary share for the remaining
shareholders and if it 15 n the best interests of shareholders
generally Any ordinary shares purchased under this
authonty will be cancelled Purchases of subscription shares
will only be made through the market at prices where the
Directors believe such purchases will enhance ordinary
shareholder value

This authonty wall last until the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 (unless
previously revoked, vared or renewed by the Company tn
general meeting)

The Company 1s normally prohibited from purchasing its own
shares during the close periods prescribed by the UKLA's
Listing Rules The Directors intend to seek waivers from the
UKLA relating to those close periods which, if granted, will
allow the Cormpany to exercise the power to buy back shares
at any tirne Any use by the Company of the authority to
purchase shares will be by way of either a single purchase or
a series of purchases, when market conditions allow, with the
atmn of maximising the benefit to shareholders
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The above resolutions will gve Directors addinional flewibility
going forward and the Directors consider that it will be in the
interest of the Company that such powers be available
Accordingly, the Directors recornmend that shareholders
vote in favour of the above resolutions Such powers will only
be implemented when, in the view of the Directors, to do so
will be E the benefit of all shareholders

By order of the Board

Aberdeen Asset Managernent PLC
Secretary, Edinburgh

14 December 2007



Statement of Corporate Governance

Introduction

The Company 1s commtted to hugh standards of corporate
govermnance The Board 1s accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for good governance and this statement
describes how the Company applies the principles identified
in the Combmmed Code {appended to the UK Listing Authonty
Listing Rules) The Board confirms that the Company has
complied throughout the accounting period with the relevant
provisions contaned within the Code

Additionally, as the Company is a member of the AIC, the
Board has taken account of the recommendations of the
AIC's Code of Corporate Governance (the "AIC Code”) which
seeks to codify best practice of particular relevance to
investiment trusts

Directors

The Earl of Dathousie and Messrs Barnes and Entwistle are
considered by the Board to be independent of the Company
and the Manager and free of any material relationship with
the Manager Mr Yarrow is an executive director of Northern
Venture Managers which was, between June 2000 and
December 2003, a subsidiary of Edinburgh Fund Managers
Group ple, (a subsidiary of the Manager) Each Director has
the requisite hugh level and range of business and financial
experience which enables the Board to provide clear and
effective leadership and proper stewardshup of the Company
The Senior Independent Director 1s Mr Entwistle The Board
meets at least four times each year and more frequently
when business needs require The Board has a schedule of
matters reserved to 1t for decision and the requirement for
Board approval on these matters 1s communicated directly to
the senior staff of the Manager Such matters include
strategy, borrowings, treasury and dnidend policy Full and
timely information 1s provided to the Board to enable the
Directors to function effectively and to discharge their
responsibilities The Board also reviews the financial
statements, performance and revenue budgets

The Board considers that the post of chief executive officer 13
not relevant for an mvestrment trust company as this role has
effectively been delegated to the Manager under the terms
of the investment management agreement The Board takes
the view that independence 1s not compromised by length of
tenure on the Board and that expenence can add
significantly to the Board's strength

The Board has in place the necessary procedures to conduct,
on an annual basis, an appraisal of the Chairman of the Board
as well as a performance evaluation of the Board as a whole
The Board has also reviewed the Chairman’s and Directors’
other commitments and is satisfied that the Chairman and
other Directors are capable of devoting sufficient ime to the
Company

During the year ended 31 October 2007, the Board met six
times In addition, the Audit Commuttee and Management

Engagement Committee met twice Between meetings the
Board maintains regular contact with the Manager

Directors have attended Board and Committee meetings
during the year ended 31 October 2007 as follows {with their
eligibility to attend the relevant meeting in brackets)

Management

Audit  Engagement

Board Commuttee Committee

Director Meetings Meetings Meetings

The Earl of 5 {6} 2(2) 2{2)

Dathousie

{Chatrman}

T J K Barnes 5 {6} 2(2) 2(2}

R M Entwistle 5 {6) 2(2) 2(2)

N M Yarrow 5(6) 2{2) 2(2)

There 1§ an agreed procedure for Directors to take
independent professional advice if necessary and at the
Company's expense This 1s in addition to the access which
every Director has to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, which s
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with

Appointments to the Board of Directors are considered by
the whole Board Possible new Directors are identified
against the requirements of the Company’s business and the
need to have a balanced Board External search consultants
may be used to ensure that a wide range of candidates can
be considered Every Director 1s entitled to recerve
appropriate training as deemed necessary A Director
appointed during the year is required, under the provisions of
the Company’s Arbicles of Association, to retire and seek
election by shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting
The Articles also require that one third of the Directors retire
by rotation each year and seek re election at the Annual
General Meeting In addition, all Directors are required to
submut themselves for re election at least every three years

Relations with Shareholders

The Directors place a great deal of mportance on
communication with shareholders The Annual Report and
Accounts are widely distnbuted to other parties who have an
interest in the Company's performance Shareholders and
investors may obtain up to date information on the
Company through the Manager's freephone information
service and the Company responds to letters from
sharehotders on a wide range of 1ssues
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Statement of Corporate Governance continued

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting mcluded within
the Annual Report and Accounts 1s sent out at teast 20
working days in advance of the meeting All shareholders
have the opportunity to put questions at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting

Proxy Voting as an Institutional Shareholder

Responsibility for actively monitoring the activities of
wvestee compantes has been delegated by the Board to the
Manager The Manager 1s responsible for reviewing, on a
regular basis, the annual reports, circulars and other
publications produced by the investee campany, and for
attending company meetings The Manager, in the absence
of explicit instruction from the Board, 1s empowered to
exercise discretion in the use of the Company’s voting rights
The Manager's policy Is to vote all shares held by the
Company

Socially Responsible Investment Policy

The Board 1s aware of its duty to act in the interests of the
Company The Board acknowledges that there are risks
associated with mvestment in companies which fail to
conduct business in a socialty responsible manner The
Manager considers soaial, environmental and ethical factors
which may affect the performance or value of the
Company's investments The Directors, through the
Company's Manager, encourage companies in which
investments are made to adhere to best practice in the area
of Corporate Governance They believe that this can best be
achieved by entering into a dialogue with company
management to encourage them, where necessary, to
improve their policies in this area  The Company's ultimate
objective however is to deliver superior investment return for
therr clients Accordingly, whilst the Manager will seek to
favour companies which pursue best practice in the above
areas, this must not be to the detnment of the return on the
investment portfolio

Internal Controls

The Board is uttimately responsible for the Company's
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
Following the Financial Reporting Council's publication of
'Internal Control Revised Guidance for Directors on the
Combined Code’ (the FRC guidance) in October 2005, the
Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Company This process has been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of this
Annual Report and Accounts, and 1s regularly reviewed by the
Board and accords with the FRC guidance The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control
In particular, 1t has reviewed and updated the process for
dentifying and evaluating the significant risks affecting the
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Company and policies by which these risks are managed The
significant risks faced by the Company are as follows
+ financial,

operational, and

comphance

The key components designed to provide effective mternal

control are outlined below

- the Manager prepares forecasts and management accounts
which allow the Board to assess the Company’s activities
and review its performance,

+ the Board and Manager have agreed clearly defined
wwvestment critena, specified levels of authonity and
exposure limits Reports on these issues, including
performance statistics and investment valuations, are
regularty submitted to the Board,

- as a matter of course the Manager's compliance
department continually reviews the Manager's operatrons,
written agreements are i place which specifically define
the roles and responsibilities of the Manager and other third
party service praviders,

+ the Board has considered the need for an internal audit
function but, because of the compliance and internal
control systems in place within the Manager, has decided to
place reliance on the Manager’s systems and nternal audit
procedures, and
at its December 2007 meeting, the Audit Commttee
carmied out an annual assessment of internal controls for
the year ended 31 Octaber 2007 by considenng
documentation from the Manager, including the internal
audit and complance functions and taking account of
events since 31 October 2007 The results of the
assessment were then reported to the Board at the next
Board meeting

Internal control systems are designed to meet the
Company’s particular needs and the risks to which it 1s
exposed Accordingly, the internal contrd systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and by their nature can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst
misstaternent and loss

Board Committees

The Directors have appointed an Audit Commuttee The Audit

Committee operates within clearly defined written terms of

reference (copies of which are available upon request from

the Company and on the Company’s website) and comprises

the entire Board with Mr Yarrow acting as Chairman In

summary, the Audit Commuttee's main functions are

« to review and monitor the internal control systems and nisk
management systems on which the Company is reliant,

+ to consider annually whether there is a need for the
Company to have its own internal audit function,



to monitor the ntegy ity of the intenm and annual financial
statements of the Company by reviewing, ana challenging
where necessary, the actions and judgements of the
Manager and Adminustrator,

to meet, as requited, with the external auditors to review
their proposed audit programme of work and the findings of
the auditors The Committee shall also use this as an
opportunity to assess the effectiveness of the Audit
process,

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non audit services,

to review the arrangements in place within Aberdeen
whereby Aberdeen staff may, in confidence, escalate
concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financiat reporting or other matters,

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor; and

» to monitor and review annually the external auditor’s

independence, objectivity, effectiveness, resources and
qualification

Services provided for the non audit fee of £19,000 for the
year comprised the intenm review, the annual trustee letter
for the Debenture Stock and for services related to the
tender offer Shareholders have the opportumty at each
Annual General Meeting to vote on the appointment of the
external auditors for the forthcorming year The Commuttee
also reviews annually the “whistle blowing” arrangements in
place within the Manager whereby its staff may, in
confidence, escalate concerns about possible impropneties in
matters of financial reporting or other matters

The Directors have appointed a Management Engagement
Commuttee All of the Directors are members of the
Management Engagement Committee and Mr Yarrow is the
Chairman The Commuttee reviews the performance of the
Manager and rts compliance with the terms of the
management and secretarial agreement The terms and
conditions (copies of which are available upon request from
the Company and on the Company’s website) of the
Manager’s appointment, mcluding an evaluation of
performance and fees, are reviewed by the Committee on an
annual basis The Committee believes that the continuing
appaintment of the Manager on the terms agreed 1s 1n the
interests of shareholders as a whole

Given the size of the Board, the Board as a whole acts as a

Nomination Committee with the Senior Independent
Director acting as Chairman
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
& Accounts and the financial statements, in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company faw requires the Directors ta prepare financial
staternents for each financial year Under that lav- the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards

The financial statements are required by law ta give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are

required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned in the financial statements, and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue n business
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The Drrectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasanable accuracy at any time
the financiat position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for prepanng a Directors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement
that camply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the mamtenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial staternents
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions



Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared this report, in accordance with the
requirernents of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this report will be put
to the members at the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting
The law requires your Company's auditors to audit certain of
the disclosures provided Where disclosures have been
audited, they are indicated as such The auditors’ opinion 1s
included in ther report on page 26

Remuneration Committee

As the Board of Directors is comprised solely of non
executive Directars, it 1s exempt under the Listing Rules from
appomnting a Remuneration Commuttee The determination
of the Directors' fees i1s a8 matter dealt with by the whole
Board

Unaudited Information

The Company's Articles of Association imit the aggregate
fees payable to the Board of Directors to a total of £100,000
per annum Subject to this overall imit, the Board’s policy i1s
that the remuneration of nan executive Directors should
reflect the experience of the Board as a whole and be far and
comparable to that of other investment trusts that are
simitar in size, have a similar capital structure and have a
similar investment objective It i1s intended that this policy
will continug for the year to 31 October 2008 and
subsequent years The fees for the non executive Directors
are determined wathin the limits set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association, and they are not etigible for bonuses,
pension benefits, share options, long term incentive schemes
or other benefits The Board carried out a review of the level
of Directors’ fees during the year and concluded that the
amounts should increase to £20,000, £17,500 and £15,000
for the Charman, Audit Commuttee Chairman and remaining
Directors respectively effective 1 March 2007

No Director has a service contract with the Company The
terms of their appointment prowide that a Director shall
retire and be subject to re election at the first Annual
General Meeting after their appointment, and at least every
three years after that The terms also provide that a Director
may be removed without notice and that compensation wilt
not be due on leaving office

No Director was interested in contracts with the Company
during the period or subsequently

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover 1s maintained
by the Company on behalf of the Directors

The graph opposite shows the share price and NAV total
return (assuming all dividends are reinvested) to ordinary
shareholders compared to the total return from the FTSE
SmallCap Index (excluding Investment Compames) This

index was chosen for companson purposes, as tt 15 the
benchmark used for investment performance measurement
purposes

Audited Information

Drrectors’ Emoluments
The Directors who served in the year received the following
fees which exclude employers' NI and any VAT payable

2007 2006
Director £ £
The Earl of Dalhousie 18,203 14,296
T ) KBarnes 13,891 11,425
R M Entwistle 13,891 11,425
N M Yarrow 15,558 11,425
Total 61,543 48,571

Approval

The Directors’ Rermuneration Report was approved by the
Board of Directors on 14 December 2007 and signed on its
behalf by

By order of the Board

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
Secretary, Edinburgh

14 December 2007
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independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Dunedin
Srnaller Companies Investment Trust PLC for the year ended
31 Cctober 2007 which comprise the Income Statement, the
Balance Sheet, the Reconciliation of Movements in
Shareholders’ Funds, the Cash Flow Statement and the
related notes These financiat statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We
have also audited the mformation in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been
audited

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a
bady, in accordance with Section 235 of the Compantes Act
1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective Responsibilities of Cirectors and Auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual
Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibihities on page 24

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
in accordance with re'evant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland)

We report to you our opinicn as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial staterments and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We
also report to you whether in our opinien the information
given mn the Directors’ Report I1s consistent with the financtal
statements The information given in the Directors’ Report
includes that specific information presented in the Corporate
Summary, Chairman's Statement and the Manager's Review
that 1s cross referenced from the business review section of
the Directors’ Report We also report to you if, in our
opiruon, the Company has net kept proper accounting
records, If we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or «f information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactrons 15 not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement

reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions
of the 2006 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by
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the Listing Rutes of the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not  We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all
risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s corporate governance procedures or its nsk
and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual
Report and constder whether 1t 15 consistent with the audited
financial statemnents We consider the implications for our
report iIf we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any ather information

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance wath International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on
a test basls, of evidence relevant to the armounts and
drsclosures in the financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited 1t also
includes an assessment of the sigmificant estimates and
judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
i order to provide us with suffictent evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financiat statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error  In forming our opimon we also
evaluated the overalt adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements and the part of the
Drrectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

- the financial statements give a true and fair view, In
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31
October 2007 and of its total return for the year then
ended,

+ the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report s consistent
with the financial statements

KPMG Audit Plc KfN(- A-.Jd_' pl.g

Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

Edinburgh

14 December 2007



income Statement

Year ended 31 October 2007 Year ended 31 October 2006
Revenue Capital Total  Revenue Capital Total
return return return return return return
Notes £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gains on investments 9 - 7,558 7,558 - 32,546 32,546
income 2 3,114 - 3,114 3,914 - 3914
Investment management fee 3 (111) (566) 677) (162) (1,296}  (1,458)
Admirystrative expenses 4 (276) - (376) (307) - (307)
Net return before finance costs and taxation 2627 6,992 9,619 3,445 31,250 34,695
Finance costs 5 (195) {7,045}  (7.240) (317 {049) (1,266}
Return on ordinary activities before taxation 2,432 (53} 2,379 3,128 30,301 33,429
Taxation 6 - - - - - -
Return on ordinary activities after taxation 2,432 {53) 2,379 3,128 30,301 33,429
Return per ordinary share (pence} 8 447 (0 10) 437 384 3724 4108

The total column of this statement represents the profit and loss account of the Company

A Statement of Total Recogrised Gains and Losses has not been prepared as all gans and losses are recognised in the Income
Statement

All revenue and capital items in the above statement denive from continuing operations
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

To enable comparison following the sub division, the return per ordinary share, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares In issue and the net asset value per ordinary share for the year ended 31 Octaber 2006 have been restated to reflect
the effect of the sub dwision of ordinary shares
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Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 October 2007 31 October 2006
Notes £000 £000
Non current assets
Investments at far value through profit or loss 9 82,931 114,893
Current assets
Debtors and prepayments 10 307 2,277
UK Treasury Bills 16 4,963 19,064
AAA Maney Market funds 16 4,350 10,915
Cash and short term deposits 16 386 367
10,006 32,563
Creditors amounts fatling due within one year
Bank loan 11 (10,000} -
Other creditors 11 {573) {1,203)
(10,573) {(1.203)
Net current {Labilities)/assets (567} 31,360
Total assets less current Liabilities 82,364 146,253
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 12 - (14,856)
Net assets 82,364 131,397
Capital and reserves
Catled up share capital 13 2,466 4,068
Share premium account 19 -
Capital redermption reserve 2,160 557
Capital reserve — realised 43,435 76,606
Capital reserve — unrealised 29,872 45,555
Revenue raserve 4,412 4,671
Equity shareholders’ funds 82,364 131,397
Net asset value per ordinary share {pence) 17 166 97 16131

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on 14 December 2007 and were

signed on its behalf by
feljkwu/%@

The Earl of Dalhouste
Director

The accompany:ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year ended 31 October 2007

Share Capitat Capital Capital
Share  premium  redemption  reserve—  reserve — Revenue

capital account reserve realised unrealised reserve Total

Notes £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Balance at 31 October 2006 4,068 - 557 76,606 45,555 4611 131,397

Issue of subscription shares 1 19 - - - - 20

Corporate restructuring costs - - - {595) - - {595}

Purchase of own shares (1,603) - 1,603 (48,206) - - (48,206}

Return an ordinary activities - - - 15630  (15,683) 2,432 2,379
after taxation

Dividends paid 7 - - - - - (2,631} (2,631)

Balance at 31 October 2007 2,466 19 2,160 43,435 29,872 4,412 82,364

For the year ended 31 October 2006
Caprtat Capital Capitat
Share redemption  reserve— reserve — Revenue

capital reserve realised unrealised reserve Total

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Balance at 31 October 2005 4,068 557 65,270 26,590 4,030 100,515

Return on ordinary activities - - 11,336 18,965 3,128 33,429
after taxation

Dvidends paid 7 - - - - (2,547} (2.547)

Balance at 31 October 2006 4,068 557 76,606 45,555 4611 131,397

The revenue reserve represents the amount of the Company's reserves distnbutable by way of dividend
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 October 2007 31 October 2006

Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities i4 1,813 2,519
Serviang of finance
Interest pard {1,250} {1,257)
Financial investment
Purchases of investments (7,738) (13,185}
Sales of investments 49,253 26,398
Net cash inflow from financial investment 41,515 13,213
Equity dividends paid 7 (2631) (2,547)
Net cash inflow before use of Liquid resources and finanaing 39,447 11,928
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from management of hgwid 20,666 {12,786}
resources
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 60,113 {858)
Fimancing
Drawdown of bank loan 10,000 -
Repayment of Debenture Stock (21,464) -
Repurchase of own shares (48,061) -
Issue of subscniption shares 20 -
Corporate restructuring costs (589) -
Net cash outflow from financing (60,094) -
Increase/(decrease) in cash 15 19 (858)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movements in net funds
increase/(decrease) in cash as above 19 {858)
Net change in liquid resources {20,666) 12,786
Change 1n net funds resulting from cash flows (20,647) 11,928
Repaymaent of Debenture Stock 15,000 -
Brawdown of loan (10,000) -
Amortised Debenture Stock expenses written off (144) (9
Movement in net funds in the year (15,791) 11,919
Opemng net funds 15,490 3,57
Closing net {debt)}/funds 16 {301) 15,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements ror the year ended 31 October 2007

1 Accounting policies

{a)

(b)

(e}

(f

Basis of preparation and going concern

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as madified to include the
revaluation of investments and in accordance with the applicable UK Accounting Standards and with the Statement
of Recormmended Practice 'Financial Statements of Investment Trust Compantes’ (issued in 2003 and revised in
December 2005} They have also been prepared on the assumption that approval as an investment trust will
continue to be granted The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Directors believe
this s appropriate for the reasons outlined in the Directors’ Report on page 19

The financial statements and the net asset value per share figures have been prepared in accordance wath UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {UK GAAP)

Revenue, expenses and interest payable

Income from equity investrments {other than speciat dividends), including taxes deducted at source, 15 included in
revenue by reference to the date on which the investment is quoted ex dividend Special dividends are credited to
revenue or capital according to the circumstances  Foreign incarme (s converted at the exchange rate applicable at
the time of receipt Interest recervabie on short term deposits, expenses and interest payable are accounted for on an
accruals basis  Interest payable s calculated an an effective yield basis

Expenses are charged to capital when they are incurred in connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the
value of investments In this respect, the investment management fee and relevant finance costs are allocated
between revenue and capital in line with the Board's expectation of returns from the Company’s investments over
the long term in the form of revenue and capital respectively (see note 3)

Investments

Investments have been designated upon mitial recognition as fasr value through profit or loss Investments are
recognised at trade date where a purchase or sale 1s under contract whose terms require delivery within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are measured initally at fair value Subsequent to imitial
recogrition, investments are recognised at fair value through profit or loss ‘For bisted investments, this 1s deemed to
be bid market prices or closing prices for SETS stacks, sourced from the London Stock Exchange SETS 15 the London
Stock Exchange electromic trading service covering most of the market including all FTSE All Share and the most
liquid AIM constituents

Dividends payable
Interim and final dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid

Capital reserves

Realised

Realised gains and losses on realisation of investments held at fair value are recognised in the Income Statement and
are ultimately transferred to the realised capital reserve In addition, any pnor unrealised gains or losses on such
investments are transferred from the unrealised capital reserve to the realised capital reserve on disposal of
investments The capital element of the management fee along with the associated irrecoverable VAT and the
relevant finance costs are charged to this reserve  Any associated tax relief 1s credited to this reserve

Unrealised

Increases and decreases in the valuation of investments held at fair value are recognised in the Income Statement
and are ultimately transferred to the unrealised capital reserve

Taxation

Deferred taxation I1s provided on all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet
date where transactions or events that result in an abligation to pay more or a rnight to pay less tax in the future have
occurred at the Balance Sheet date measured on an undiscounted basis and based on enacted tax rates This s
subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised If 1t 1s considered more likely than not that there will be suitable
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

profits from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted Temporary
differences are differences arising between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements which are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods

Owing to the Company’s status as an investment trust company, and the intention to continue meeting the
conditions required to obtain appraval in the future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains
and losses ansing on the revaluation or disposal of investments

2007 2006
2 Income £'000 £'000

income from investments
UK dividend mcome 2,541 3,154
Overseas dividend income 28 -
2,569 3,154

Other income
Interest from AAA rated Money Market funds 223 234
Interest on Treasury Bills 260 492
Deposit interest 58 32
Underwriting commussion 4 2
545 760
Total income 3,114 3,914
2007 2006

Revenue Capital Tatal Revenue Capital Total
Investment management fee £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Investment management fee 98 295 393 138 414 552
Performance fee - 200 200 - 689 689
98 495 593 138 1,103 1,241
irrecoverable VAT thereon (where applicable) 13 71 84 24 193 217
111 566 677 162 1,286 1,458

The management fee paid to the Manager is calculated at 0 40% per annum of the gross assets of the Company after
deducting current Liabilities and excluding commeonly managed funds (*adjusted gross assets’)

In addition, the Manager s entitled to a performance related fee calculated quarterly in arrears at a rate of 0 1% per annum
{up to a maximum of 0 5% per annum) of the adjusted gross assets for every 1% by which the Company’s net asset value
performance outperforms the capital performance of the FTSE SmallCap Index (ex IC's) over the twelve month period

The management agreement between the Company and the Manager 1s normally terminable by either party on 3 months'’

notice

The management fee 1s chargeable 75% to capital and 25% to revenue The performance related management fee 1s

chargeable wholly to capital
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2007 2006
4 Administrative expenses £'000 £'000

Directors' fees 62 49
Auditors’ remuneration

- fees payable to the Company’s auditor
— for the audit of the annual accounts 12 12

— fees payable to the Company's auditor and
tts associates for other services

— Interim review 3 3

— for other services pursuant to -

legistation

— for other services - 2
Secretarial fees 65 63
Investment Trust lnitiative 33 36
Registrar's fees 42 38
Advisory fees 24 -
Loan commitment fee 21 _
lrrecoverable VAT 38 33
Other expenses 76 70

376 307

The secretanal fee of £65,000 (2006 — £63,000) 1s paid to the Manager

A contribution of £33,000 (2006 — £36,000) was paid to the Manager in respect of marketing and promotion of the
Company through their investment Trust Initiative

Services related to Corporate Finance Transactions

During the year an additional amount of £16,082 was paid to KPMG Transaction Services for services relating to the tender
offer This figure 1s reflected within the total corporate restructuring costs in the Reconciliation in Movements in
Shareholders’ Funds

2007 2006

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
5 Finance costs £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £000 £'000
8 375% Debenture Stock interest 22 67 89 315 942 1,257
Debenture Stock premium and ISSUe eXpenses 36 108 144 2 7 9

written off
Bank loan mterest 136 406 542 - - -
Bank overdraft interest 1 - 1 - - -
Premiurm paid on Debenture Stock repurchase - 6,464 6,464 - - -
195 7,045 7.240 317 949 1,266

6 Taxation

There 1s no liability to corporation tax for the year (2006 — nil)

At the year end, the Company had surplus management expenses and loan relationship losses of £24,040,000 (2006 -
£16,310,000) These have been generated because such a large part of the Company's income is derived from dividends
from UK companies The Company s not expected to generate taxable income in a future period in excess of deductible
expenses for that penod and, accordingly, Is unlikely to be able to reduce future tax Liabiities by offsetting these losses
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

These losses are not recognised as a defeired tax asset This is because the Company 1s not expected to generate taxable
income in a future peniod in excess of deductible expenses for that future peniod and, accordingly, 1s unlikely to be able to
reduce future tax lrabilities by offsetting these losses

Due to the Company’s status as an investment trust and the intention to continue to meet the conditions required to
obtain approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on capital gains and losses arising on
the revaluation or disposal of investments

2007 2006
Dividends £000 £'000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period
Second interim dividend payable 2006 — 107p* (2005 - ml) 871 -
Finat dwidend for 2006 ~ 1 55p {2005 ~ 2 20p") 875 1,790
Interim dividend for 2007 ~ 1 75p (2006 ~ 0 93p") 885 757
Dividends pad in the period 2,631 2,547

* Adjusted rate taking Into account 5 for 1 share sub diasion in Movernber 2006

The proposed final divedend 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been mcluded
as a liability in these financial statements

The table below sets out the total dividends paid and proposed in respect of the financial year, which is the basis on which
the requirements of Section 842 (‘s 842') Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are considered The revenue avaitable for
distnibution by way of dwidend for the year 1s £2,432,000 (2006 - £3,128,000)

2007 2006

£'000 £'000

Intenm dividend paid for 2007 — 1 75p {2006 — 093p*) 885 757
Second interim dividend payable for 2006 — 107p” - 871
Proposed final dividend for 2007 — 2 50p (2006 — 1 55p) 1218 875
2,103 2,503

* adjusted rate taking sta account S for 1share sub dimsion in Navember 2006

Since the year end the Company has bought back 616,500 shares, therefore, the proposed final dividend for 2007 1s based
on the latest share capttal of 48,710,821 ordinary 5p shares

2007 2006
Return per ordinary share p p
Revenue return 447 384
Capital return (010) 3724
Total return 437 4108
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 54,391,540 81,368,595*

* Adjusted to reflect the 5 for 1 share sub dwnsion in Movember 2006
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Listed Listed

in UK in UK
2007 2006
Investments £000 £'000
Farr value through profit or loss
Opening fair value 114,893 97,265
Opening unrealised appreciation (45,555) {26,590)
Opening book cost 69,338 70,675
Purchases at cost 7,969 12,886
Sales - proceeds (47,489) (27,804}
- realised gawns on sales 23,241 13,581
Closing book cost 53,059 69,338
Closing unrealised appreciation 29,872 45,555
Closing fair value 82,931 114,893
2007 2006
Gains on investments £'000 £'000
Realised gains on sales 23,241 13,581
{Decrease)/increase in unrealised appreciation (15,683} 18,965
7,558 32,546

Transaction costs

During the year expenses were incurred in acquinng or disposing of investments classified as fair value through profit or
loss These have been expensed through capital and are included within gains on investments in the Income Statement
The total costs were as follows

2007 2006

£'000 £000

Purchases 63 79
Sales 48 28
111 107

2007 2006

Debtors. amounts falling due within one year £'000 £'000
Amounts due from stockbrokers 15 1,779
Net dividends and interest receivable 273 292
Other debtors and prepayments 19 146
307 2,217
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

B

12

13.

Creditors. amounts falling due within one year

{a) Bank loan

in November 2006 the Company entered into a new three year revolving credit agreement facibity with ING bank
NV At the year end £10,000,000 remained drawn down at & rate of 6 42375%

2007 2006

(b) Other creditors £'000 £°000

Amounts due to stockbrokers 376 -

Investment management fee 116 386

Interest payable 10 628

Sundry creditors 71 189

573 1,203

2007 2006

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year £'000 £000
Repayable in more than 5 years

8 375% Debenture Stock 2022 - 15,000

Unamortised Debenture Stock premium and 1ssue expenses - (144)

- 14,856

On 1 December 2006 and n accordance with the proposals regarding the Company announced on 24 October 2006, the
Company repaid the Debenture Stock in its entirety at a cost of £21,463,500 which includes a premium of £6,463,500
Thus premium has been included in the finance costs on the Income Statement

2007 2006
Called up share capital £'000 £'000
Authorised
104,000,000 ordinary shares of Sp each
{2006 — 20,800,000 ordinary shares of 25p each) 5,200 5,200
Allotted, called up and fully pad
49,327,321 ordinary shares of 5p each
(2006 — 16,273,719 ordinary shares of 25p each} 2,466 4,068

An Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 24 November 2006 approved the proposals announced by the
Company on 24 October 2006 The tender offer for up to 30% of the issued ordinary shares was fully subscribed and
4,882,087 shares were repurchased and cancelled by the Company at a total cost of £36,332,126

On 30 November 2006, there was a sub-division of the remaining 1ssued ordinary shares of 25p each into 5 ordinary
shares of Sp each

In addrtion, a bonus issue of new subscription shares was completed on the basis of 15 new subscription shares for every

100 ordinary shares resulting from the ordinary share sub-diision Each subscription share confers the night to subscribe

for, or convert into, one ordinary share on 28 February in any of the years 2007 to 2012 (inclusive) at a pnice of 170p per
share On 28 February 2007, 11,717 subscription shares were exercised, leaving 8,531,779 subscription shares 10 1ssue

During the year an additional 7,642,556 (2006 — nil) ordinary shares of 5p each were bought back for cancellation at a
totat cost of £11,874,848 (2006 — £nil} including expenses
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14 Reconaliation of net revenue before finance costs and 2007 2006

taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities £'000 £000
Net return on ordinary actvities before finance costs and taxation 9,619 34,695
Adjustrnent for
Gains on mvestments {7,558) (32,546)
Decrease/{increase)in accrued income 19 (18)
Decrease in other debtors 3 140
(Decrease)/increase in other creditors (270) 248
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,813 2,519
2007 2006
15 Analysis of changes in cash during the year £°000 £000
Opening balance 367 1,225
Net cash inflow/({outflow) 19 (858)
Closing balance 386 367
At Amortisation of At
1 November issue expenses 31 Octaber
2006 Cash flow and premsum 2007
16 Analysis of changes in net funds £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cash and short term deposits 367 19 - 386
UK Treasury Bills 19,064 (14,101) - 4,963
AAA Money Market funds 10,915 (6,565) - 4,350
Bank toan - {10,000) - {10,000}
Debt due after more than one year (14,856) 15,000 (144) -
Net funds/(debt) 15,490 {15,647) (144) {301)

17 Net asset value per share

Equity shareholders’ funds have been calculated in accordance with the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard 4
‘Capital Instruments’ The analysis of equity shareholders’ funds on the face of the Balance Sheet does not reflect the
nghts under the Articles of Association of the ordinary shareholders on a return of assets These rights are reflected in the
net asset value and the net asset value per share attributable to ordinary shareholders at the year end, adjusted to reflect
the deduction of the Debenture Stock at par A reconciliation between the two sets of figures is given betow —

2007 2006

Equity shareholders’ funds £82,364,000 £131,397,000
Adjusted net assets £82,364,000 £131,253,000
Number of equity shares in issue at year end 49,327,321 81,368,595
P P

Equity shareholders’ funds per share 166 97 16148
Less Unamortised Debenture Stock premium and tssue expenses - 017)
Adjusted net asset value per share 166 97 16131

The net asset value per share and the number of ordinary shares in I1ssue at 31 October 2006 have been re stated to
reflect the sub division of the Company’s share capital {see note 13)
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The movements during the year of the assets attributable to the erdinary shares were as follows —

2007 2006

£000 £000
Opening adjusted net assets 131,253 100,362
Capital return for the year (53} 30,301
Revenue on ordinary activities after taxation 2,432 3,128
Davidends appropriated in the year {2.631) (2,547)
Movement in unamortised Debenture Stock premmium and 1ssue expenses 144 9
Issue of subscription shares 20 -
Corporate restructuring costs (595) -
Share buybacks (48,206) -
Closing net assets 82,364 131,253

The 31 October 2006 net asset value per share, adjusted to include the Debenture Stock at a market value of £20,214,000
rather than at par, was 154 90p, after adjusting for the 5 for 1 share sub dvision

Risk management, financial assets and liabilities

Risk management

The mayor nsks associated with the Company are market price risk, being the nisk that the valug of investment holdings
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices caused by factors other than mnterest rate or currency movement,
gearing nisk, and to a lesser extent liquidity nsk and interest rate nsk The Company has established a framework for
managing these nsks wiich is evolving continually as the Company's investment activities change in response to market
developments The Board has provided the Manager with guidelines and Limits for the management of market risk, geaning
and financial assets and habilities

Market risk

Market nsk arses from changes in interest rates, valuatians accorded to equities, movements in prices and the liquidity of
financial instruments Market price risk 15 managed through investment guidelines agreed by the Board with the Manager
and 1s discussed at each Board meeting

Gearing

It 1s the Company's policy to ncrease Its exposure to equity market price risk through the judicious use of borrewings
When borrowed funds are invested in equities, the effect 15 to magmfy the impact on sharehotders’ funds of changes —
both positive and negative — in the value of the portfolio

The Board regulates the overail level of geaning by ramsing or lowenng cash balances and 1s also able, If the circumstances
warrant, to use derivatives or to purchases fixed interest securities in order to offset the effect of geaning

Finanoal assets and habilities

The Company's financial instruments comprise equity investments, cash balances, AAA Money Market funds, Treasury Bills
and debtors and creditors that anse directly from its operations, for example, in respect of sales and purchases awarting
settlernent

Non current asset investments (see note 9) are valued at closing trade prices which equate to their fair values The fair
values of all other assets and Liabiities, other than the Debenture Stock (see note 12), are represented by therr carrying
values in the Balance Sheet.

The Company places funds with authonised deposit takers from time to time and is therefore potentially at aisk from the
fallure of any such institution of which 1t 15 a creditor

38 Dunedin Smaller Cornparies Investment Trust PLC



19

Contingent assets

The European Court of justice has decided that management fees should be exempt from VAT We understand that
HMRC has now decided not to appeal against this case to the UK VAT Tnibunal and therefore protective claims which
have been made in relation to the Company will be processed in due course The Board Is currently in the process of
quantifying the potential repayment that should be due However, the amount the Company will recewe, the period
to which st will refer, and the timescale for recetpt are all uncertain and herice the Company has made no provision in
these financial statements for any such repayment
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Marketing Strategy

Dunedin Smatler Companies Investment Trust PLC
contributes to the marketing programme run by the
Aberdeen Group on behalf of a number of investment trusts
under its management Under this agreement the Company's
contribution is matched by AAM

The purpose of the Programme 15 to communicate effectively
with existing shareholders and gain more new shareholders,
thus improving hiquidity and thereby enhancing the value and
rating of the Company's shares

These aims can be met in several ways

Investor relations programme

AAM runs an investor relations programme to existing and
prospective nstitutional investors m investment trusts Each
month institutional investors and prospacts receive a
Manager's report on your Company that includes detaled
performance analysis

Newsletter

The 'Bulletin’ newsletter, an informed commentary on
markets and investment trusts managed by the Aberdeen
Group 15 distributed free of charge

Public relations

AAM undertakes to brief journalists, write regularly through
placed articles and ensure Company results and any
corporate activity are brought to public attention

Shareholder services

AAM runs an investment help desk for retail enquirers and
mnvestors Enquirers or investors will be sent any relevant
hiterature on request and have queries answered
immedhately

The Marketing Programme 15 under the direction of AAM's
Head of Investor Relations for investment Trusts, who has
considerable expenence in the marketing and
communications of investment products He 1s supported by
a tearn of marketing professionals
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internet

The AAM Investment Trusts web site contains details of
closed end funds and investment companies managed or
adwvised by the Aberdeen Group

Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC also has
its own dedicated website www dunedinsmatler co uk This
allows web users to access information on the Company's
share price performance, capital structure, stock exchange
announcements and monthty reports The site ts
continuously being evaluated for improvement

It 15 intended that ongoing Programme activities in these
various fields, both proactive and supportive, wilt assist the
Company to increase and mantain its Shareholder base,
improve ligudity and sustain ratings

The Company 1s committed to a close monitoring of the
Programme and the Head of Investor Relations for
Investment Trusts reports to the Board and provides a
written surmmary quarterly

If you have any questions about your Company, the Manager
or perforrmance, please telephorie the AAM Customer
Services Department (direct prnivate investors} on 0500 00 00
40 or our Broker Desk on 0800 592 487 (Inststutions and
IFAs) Alternatively, internet users may email AAM at

inv trusts@aberdeen asset com or write to Aberdeen
Investrnent Trusts, Block C, Western House, Lynchwood
Business Park, Peterborough PE2 6BP



How to invest in

Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC

Direct

Investors can buy and sell shares in Dunedin Smaller
Companes investment Trust PLC directly through a
stockbroker or indirectly through a lawyer, accountant or
other professional adviser  Alternatively shares can be
bought directly through the lnvestment Trust Share Plan,
Investment Trust ISA and Iavestment Trust Pension

Aberdeen’s investment Trust Share Plan

Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited ("Aberdeen”) runs a Share
Plan (the “Plan") which covers a number of investment
companies under its management including Dunedin Smaller
Compantes Investment Trust PLC  All investments are free of
dealing charges on the mitial purchase of shares, although
investors will suffer the bid offer spread, which can, on some
occastons, be a significant amount Lump sum investments
start at £250 per trust, while regular savers may invest from
£100 per month Investors simply pay Government Stamp
Duty {currently 0 5%) on entry Selling costs are £10 + VAT
There 5 no restnction on how tong an investor need invest in
the Plan, and regular savers can stop or suspend participation
by mstructing Aberdeen in wnting at any time |n common
with other schernes of this type, all investments are held in
nominee accounts Investors have full voting and other rights
of share ownership

Aberdeen’s Investment Trust Individual Savings
Account

The Aberdeen Investment Trust ISA (the “ISA") has been
available from 6 Apnl 1999 It aims to generate income
and/or capital growth within a tax efftcient environment
Investors can hold up to two components within an ISA
stocks and shares (including Investment Trusts) and cash
Aberdeen offers both a Mini and Max: stocks and shares [SA
but does not offer the cash component

Maxi ISA

The Maxt ISA offers a wide range of Aberdeen managed or
advised Investinent Compantes The Maxt ISA does not have
a cash component An investment of up to £7,000 can be
made in the tax year 2007/2008

Mim ISA

Aberdeen offers a Minu ISA which will enable investors to
invest up to £4,000 in Dunedin Smaller Companies
Investment Trust PLC in the tax year 2007/2008 There are
no brokerage or imitial charges for the ISA, although nvestors
will suffer the bid offer spread, which can be a significant
amount Investors only pay Government Stamp Duty
(currently 0 5%) on purchases Selling costs are £15 + VAT
The annual ISA management charge ts £24 + VAT, calculated
monthly and deducted from income half yearly Under

current {egistation, trusts can grow free of income or capital
gains tax In the case of dividends from equity assets held
within an ISA or a PEP, a 10% tax credit was reclaimed until
S April 2004, when the tax credit was abolished

Aberdeen's Investment Plan for Children

Aberdeen also offers an Investrnent Plan for Children (the
“Children’s Plan"} which covers a number of investrnent
companies under .ts management ncluding Dunedin Smaller
Companies Investment Trust PLC Anyone can invest in the
Childrer's Plan, incluaing parents, grandparents and family
friends All imvestrnents are free of dealing charges on the
mitial purchase of shares, although investors will suffer the
bid/offer spread, which can, on some occasions, be a
significant amount Lurnp sum investments start at £150 per
trust, while regular savers may invest from £30 per month
Investors simply pay Government Stamp Duty (currently
05%) on entry Selling costs are £10 + VAT There 15 no
restriction on how long an investor need investin a
Children’s Plan, and regular savers can stop or suspend
participation by instructing Aberdeen m writing at any time
In common with ather schemes of this type, all investments
are held in nominee accounts

PEP Transfer

PEPs are an easy way to make medium and long term tax
efficient nvestments in stock markets All income and capital
gans are free of tax Since 5 April 1999 no further
subscriptions can be made into a PEP You can however,
transfer existing PEPs to Aberdeen The mimimum lump surn
for a PEP transfer s £1,000 and 1s subject to a mirirmum per
trust of £250

Investment Trust Pension

The Investment Trust Pension enables investors to save for
retirement by investing in Dunedin Smaller Companies
Investment Trust The investment Trust Pension offers a
Personal Pension Plan Contributtons can be made regularly
or by lump sums, and there are low minimum mvestment
armounts

Trust Information

If mvestors would like details of Dunedin Smaller Companres
Investment Trust or information on the Share Plan, ISA or
Pension please telephone 0500 00 00 40 or write to
Aberdeen Investment Trusts, Block C, Western House,
Lynchwood Business Park, Peterborough PEZ 6BP or e mail at
inv trusts@aberdeen asset com

Keeping you Informed

The Company's share price appears under the heading
‘Investment Companies’ in the Financial Times, and other
national newspapers
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How to Invest in

Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC contiued

For intemet users, detalled data on Dunedin Smaller
Compantes Investment Trust, including price, performance
information and a monthly fact sheet 1s available from the
Trust's website (www dunedinsmaller co uk} and the
TrustNet website {www trustnet co uk)

Equiruts (formerly Lioyds TSB Regrstrars) also have a website
{www shareview co uk) which includes a page entitled
*Shareholder Services’, which gives shareholders an insight
into their shareholding The website also has information
about how to register a change of name and what to do f
you have lost your share certificate

For information concerning your shareholding, please
contact

Registrar

Equinits Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road, Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA
Telephone 0870 601 5366
Textphone 0870 600 3950
Website www shareview co uk
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Literature Request Service

For brerature and application forms for the Manager's
Investment trust products, please contact

Telephone 0500 00 00 40

Emad nv trusts@aberdeen asset com

For information on the Share Plan, ISA and PEP, please
contact

Aberdeen Investrent Trust Administration
Black €, Western House

Lynchwood Business Park

Peterborough, PE2 GBP

Telephone 0500 00 00 40

Pension Admiristrator
Edinburgh Pension Centre
Capita SIP Services

141 Castle Street
Salisbury

Wiltshire 5P1 3TB
Telephone 0800 13 70 79

The above informatton has been approved for the purposes
of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
by Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited which 1s authonised and
regulated by the Financial Services Authority



Glossary of Terms and Definitions

Actual Gearing Ratio
Fixed assets dvided by Net Asset Value (Articles basis)

Discount

The amount by which the market price per share of an
mvestment trust 15 lower than the net asset value per share
The discount 1s normally expressed as a percentage of the
net asset value per share

Dividend Yield
The annual dividend expressed as a percentage of the share
price

Earnings per share
Revenue attributable to equity shareholders divided by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares

Net Asset Value (debt at par)

The value of total assets less liabilities Liabiltties for this
purpose include current and long term liabilities and are
valued at the nominal or par value To calculate the net asset
value per ordinary or capital share, the current repayment
values of all the other classes of share are treated as
Liabilities The net asset value dvided by the number of
shares in issue produces the net asset value per share

Net Asset Value (debt at market value)
The vatue of total assets tess hiabilities calculated as above,
but valuing debentures at thewr current market vatue

Potential Gearing
Total assets dwided by Net Asset Value (Artictes basis)

Prior Charges

The name given to all borrowings including debentures, ioan
and short term loans and overdrafts that are to be used for
Investment purposes, reciprocal foreign currency loans,
currency facilities to the extent that they are drawn down,
index linked securities, and all Lypes of preference or
preferred capital and the income shares of split capital trusts,
irrespective of the time until repayment

Total Assets
Total Assets less current Liabilities {before deducting prior
charges as defined above)

Total Expense Ratio

Calculated as the total of the investment management fee
(excluding performance fee} and admimstration expenses
divided by the average of shareholders’ funds at the start and
end of the financial year

Total Return

Total Return involves reinvesting the net dividend in the
month that the share price goes xd The NAV Total Return
involves investing the same net dividend in the NAV of the
trust on the date to which that dividend was earned, eg
quarter end, half year or year end date
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the eightieth Annual General Meeting of Dunedin Smaller Companies nvestment Trust PLC will be
held at The Balmoral Hote!, 1 Princes Street, Edinburgh EH2 2£Q on Thursday 7 February 2008 at 12 noon, for the following
purposes

To consider and, If thought fit, pass the following resolutions, of which Resolutions 1 to 7 inclusive will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 8 to 10 will be proposed as Special Resolutions

Ordinary Business

To recewve the reports of the Directors and auditors and the financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2007
Ta approve the Directors’ remuneration report for tha year ended 31 Qctober 2007

To propose a final dividend of 2 50p on the ordinary shares

To re elect Mr R Entwistle as a Director of the Campany

To re appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company

D b W NN

To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors for the year to 31 October 2008

Special Business

7 THAT with effect from the time of the passing of this resalution the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised
to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant secunties (within the mearung of Section 80 of the Companies
Act 1985 (the "Act")) up to an aggregate amount of £803,729 representing approximately 33% of the present issued
share capital during the period expining at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2009, but
so that thrs authonty shall allow the Company and its Directors to make offers or agreements before such expiry which
would or might require such secunities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may make such offers or
agreements as 1f such expiry had not occurred

8  THAT subject to the passing of resalution number 7 set out above, the Directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant
to Section 95(1) of the Act, to allot equity secunties {within the meaning of Section 94(2) and 94{3A} of the Act) for cash
pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution number 7 as if Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment provided that this power shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities
(1) (otherwise than pursuant to sub paragraph {1 below) which are, or are to be wholly paid up mn cash, at the price of not
less than the net asset value per share at allotment, as determined by the Directors, up to an aggregate nominal value
of £121,777, and

{n) ' connection with i1ssues by way of rights in favour of all holders of ordinary shares where the equity secunities
respectively attributable to the interests of all such holders are either proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the
respective number of ordinary shares held by them on the record date of such allotment or otherwise allotted in
accordance with the nght conferred on such equity securities {but subject In erther case to such exclusions or other
arrangements or legal problems under the laws of or requirements of, any regulatory body or any stock exchange in
any terntory or otherwise howsoever) at a price of not less than the net asset value per share at aliotment, as
determined by the Directors,

and shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2008, but so that this power shalt
enable the Company to make offers or agreements before such expiry which would or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the Directors may make such offers or agreements as if such expiry had not occurred

9 THAT, in substitution for any existing authority under Section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 (the "Act"}, the Company
be and it 15 hereby generally and unconditionally authonised, in accordance with Section 166 of the Act, to make market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 163 (3) of the Act} of fully paid ardinary shares of 5p each in the capital of the
Company (‘ordinary shares') provided that
{1) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased shall be 14 99% of the 1ssued

ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this resolution,
(n) the minimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be 5p (exclusive of expenses),
(1} the maximurn price {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be the higher of
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a) 5% above the average of the market vatues of the ordinary shares {as derived from the Daily Official List of the
London Stock Exchange) for the ordinary shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
purchase, and

b) the higher of the price of the last independent trade in ordinary shares and the highest current independent bid
for ordinary shares on the London Stock Exchange, and

{v} unless previously varied, revoked or renewed by the Company in general meeting, the authority hereby conferred shall
expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 save that the Company
may, at any time prior to such expiry, enter Into a contract or contracts to purchase ordinary shares under such
authority which will or might be completed or executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such authority and
may make a purchase of ordinary shares pursuant to any such contract or contracts

THAT, in substitution for any existing authority under Section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 (the "Act”), the Company
be and 1t 1s hereby generally and unconditionally authorised, in accordance with Section 166 of the Act, to make market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 163 (3) of the Act) of fully paid subscription shares of € 001p each in the capital
of the Company {'subscription shares’) provided that
{1} the maximum aggregate number of subscription shares hereby authorised to be purchased shall be 14 99% of the
1ssued subscription shares as at the date of the passing of this resolution,
{1} the mmimum price which may be paid for a subscription share shall be 0 001p {exclusive of expenses),
{im) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for a subscription share shall be the higher of
a) 5% above the average of the market values of the subscription shares (as derived from the Dally Official List of
the London Stock Exchange) for the subscription shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of purchase, and
b) the higher of the price of the last iIndependent trade in subscription shares and the highest current independent
bid for subscription shares on the London Stock Exchange, and
() unless previously varied, revoked or renewed by the Company in general meeting, the authonty hereby conferred shall
expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 save that the Company
may, at any time prior to such expiry, enter into a contract or contracts to purchase subscription shares under such
authority which will or might be completed or executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such authonty and

may make a purchase of subscription shares pursuant to any such contract or contracts P m
Registered office By order of the Board
Donaldson House Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
97 Haymarket Terrace Secretary
Edinburgh EH12 SHD 28 December 2007

Notes

(1)
{n)
{ur)

(v)

A member who s entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1s entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote on
hisfher behalf A proxy need not be a member of the Company

A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy 1s appointed to exercise nights attached to shares A
member may not appoint more than ane proxy to exercise nights attached to any one share

A form of proxy for use by shareholders is enclosed with these accounts Completion and return of the form of proxy will
not prevent any shareholder from attending the meeting and voting in person To be valid, the form of proxy should be
ledged, together with any Power of Attorney or other authority (if any) under which it 15 signed or an extract from the
Books of Council and Session or a notanally certified copy of such power or authority at the address stated thereon, so as
to be received not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting

In accordance with Section 325 of the Companies Act 2006, the right to appoint proxies does not apply to persons
nominated to receive information nghts under section 146 of the Act Persons nominated to receive information rights
under section 146 of the Act who have been sent a copy of this notice of meeting are hereby informed, in accordance with
Section 149 {2) of the Act, that they may have a right under an agreement with the registered member by whom they
were nominated to be appointed, or to have somecne else appointed, as a proxy for this meeting if they have no such
right, or do not wish to exercise it, they may have a right under such an agreement to give instructions to the member as
1o the exercise of voting ights Nominated persons should contact the registered member by whom they were nominated
in respect of these arrangements
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

{v) Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunities Regulations 2007, the Company specifies that onty those
shareholders entered on the register of members of the Company as at 6 00pm on 5 February 2008 or, in the event that
the meeting 1s adjourned, on the register of members 48 haurs before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be entitled
to attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of ordinary shares registered in their name at that time
Changes to the entries on the register of members after 6 00pm on 5 February 2008 or, in the event that the meeting 1s
adjourned, In the register of members 48 hours before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be disregarded in
determining the nights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting, notwithstanding any provisions in any enactment,
the Articles of Association of the Company or other instrument to the contrary

{vi) There are special arrangements for holders of shares through the Share Plan, Investment Trust PEP/ISA and investment
Trust Pension These are explained in the ‘Letter of Direction’ which such holders will have received with this report
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Corporate information

Directors

The Earl of Dalhousie, Chairman
T | K Barnes

R M Entwistle

N M Yarrow

Manager and Registered Office
Aberdeen Asset Managers Urmited
Donaldson House

97 Haymarket Terrace

Edinburgh EH12 5SHD

Telephone 0131 313 1000

Company Registration Number SC 14692

Stockbrokers

intelll Stockbrokers
63 Queen Victoria Street
London EC4N 4UA

Registrars

Equinity Lirmited

(Formerly Lloyds TSB Registrars)
Aspect House

Spencer Road, Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Shareholder Helpline 0870 601 5366
{Calls charged at National Call Rate)

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EHT 2EG

Bankers & Custodian Bankers

The Bank of New York Mellon
One Canada Square
London E14 SAL

Website
www dunedinsmaller co uk
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Your Company’s History

The Company was incorporated on 19 july 1927

Issued share capital at 31 October 2007

49,327,321
8,531,779

Ordinary 5p shares
Subscription shares

Issued share capital at 14 December 2007

48,710,821 Ordinary 5p shares

Capital History

7 May 1997 £15,000,000 raised via a 25 year 8 375% Debenture 1ssue

6 July 2000 100,000 ardinary shares purchased for cancellation

15 March 2002 150,000 ordinary shares purchased for cancellation

3 August 2004 276,281 ordinary shares purchased for cancellat:ion

29 Novemnber 2006 Pursuant to a Tender Offer for up to 30% of the ordinary shares in 1ssue, 4,882,087 ordinary
shares were purchased by tender and cancelled at 740 49p per share

30 November 2006 Sub dwiston of ordinary shares of 25p each into five ordinary shares of Sp each

30 November 2006 Bonus Issue of 8,543,496 subscription shares

1 December 2006

28 February 2007

Year ended 31 October 2007
Since 31 October 2007

£15,000,000 8 375% Debenture Stock 2022 repaid at a price of £143 09 per £100 nominal of
Debenture Stock

11,717 subscription shares converted into Sp ordinary shares
7,642,556 ordinary shares purchased for cancellation
616,500 ordinary shares purchased for cancellation
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Dunedin Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC
{for use by holders of ordinary shares)

Form of Proxy
(For use at the Annual General Meeting on 7 February 2008)

I/We

of BLOCK
CAPITALS
PLEASE

being (a) member(s) of the above named company, hereby appoint the Chaiwrman of the Meeting

(see note 1)

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on 7 February 2008 at 12 00 noon and at any adjournment thereof

My/our proxy is to vote as indicated by an "X’ below in respect of each resolution set out in the notice

convening the Meeting

[ Resolutions

For

Against

Vote withheld

Signed Date

Notes

1 if you wish to appeint as your proxy some person other than the Chairman of the Meeting please insert in black capitals the full
names of the persan of your chaice, delete the words ‘the Chairman of the Meeting’ and inihial the alteration A proxy need not be
a member of the company 1n accordance with Sechion 325 of the Act, the nght to appoint proxies daes not apply to persons
norrunated to receive mformation rights under section 146 of the Act

2 In the case of a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be under seal or signed by a duly authonsed officer or attorney

3 In the absence of any instructton on the resolutron referred to above, your proxy wili vote or abstan as he or she thinks fit Your
praxy will alse vote of abstain as he or she thinks fit on any matter coming before the meeting

4 To be valid, this Form of Proxy, together with the Power of Attorney or other authonty (sf any) under which 1t 1s signed, or a
notanally certified copy of such power or attorney, must be deposited at the offices of the company's registrars, Equiniti Ltd, at the
address overleaf so as to be received not later than 48 hours before the time appainted for the Meeting,

S Inthe case of joint holders, the signature of any one joint holder 1s suffictent. If mare than one joint holder tenders a vote in person
ar by proxy, the vote of the person whose name stands first in the register will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the
other joint holders

6 If you submit more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment recerved last before the latest time for the receipt of

proxies will take precedence To change your proxy instructions simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out

in these notes

Campletion of this Form of Proxy will not prevent a member from attending the Meeting and voting i person should he so wish

8 The 'vote withheld option i1s provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution It should be noted that a *vote withheld'
15 not a vote in law and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of the votes ‘for' and ‘agamnst’ the resolution
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